= Assessment, Paragraph 2:

“The publication and processing of all database records for AQAS, which have a
relatively high market share compared to other agencies” records, is a very time
consuming and onerous activity. AQAS should consider whether existing personnel
capacity is sufficient”.

Existing personnel capacity is sufficient! The ongoing technical database problems have
nothing to do with human resource issues at AQAS.

“‘Recommendation 6: AQAS should look for solutions, jointly with GAC and those
responsible for the database, on how these data record entry problems in the main
database could be solved. The disputed issues around functionality and loss of data
should be put down in writing.”

Together with the other agencies AQAS has been, for years, in contact with GAC about
these database problems: the minutes of the GAC Round Table with the other agencies
of 03.05.2013 (Appendix) show that we had, at the time, flagged up that the database
was “not state-of-the-art”. The email correspondence with the Head Office of GAC from
2015 (also included as an Appendix) proves that we have repeatedly pointed out the
recurring problems with the database (esp. the “loss” of data). Other agencies
corroborated these problems.

Since late 2016 we’ve been again in an extensive email contact with the GAC and those
responsible for the database (this can be viewed from the enclosed email
correspondence which has also been included as an Appendix). We are happy to work
constructively towards improving the database, however, do not consider the proposed
conditions to be appropriate:

= The timescale allotted to agencies in which they have to meet a condition and
provide evidence to GAC is normally six months. However, the scale of the problem
is thus that it will certainly take considerably longer (for all parties concerned) to
come up with the required solution.

= AQAS cannot take sole responsibility for the problem referred to in the condition, nor
can AQAS fulfil the condition on its own. It is only by working together with the GAC
and those responsible for the database that a solution can be found.

= With the introduction of a traffic light system, presented during our re-accreditation
procedure, we have already established a quality assurance process. The traffic light
system ensures that any problems faced by us when entering data on the database
will be documented and monitored.

V. Assessment on the basis of the GAC criteria

= The rendition of the recommendation 2 (self-reflexive reports) does not correspond
to the wording in the text for standard 3.4. The resulting condition 2 does not
comply with the criteria of GAC for the accreditation of agencies in the version of
10.12.2010 upon which the procedure is based (see above).

= The proposed condition 4 does not comply with the criteria of GAC for the
accreditation of agencies in the version of 10.12.2010 upon which the procedure is
based (see above).
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V.1 In reference to the fulfilment of the GAC criteria

The description refers to the GAC criteria in the version of 23.09.2016 (see above).
According to the statements made above full reference should have been made to
the criteriain the version of 10.12.2010.

The assessment of the criterion 3.1. seems inappropriately short.
Assessments for criteria 3.4, 3.10 and 3.11. are altogether missing.

The assessment for criterion 3.7 comes as a surprise as the adequate composition
of the AQAS expert panels was nowhere called into question during the procedure.
The resulting condition 2 furthermore does not comply with the criteria of GAC for
the accreditation of agencies in the version of 10.12.2010 upon which the procedure
is based (see above).

AQAS sought to be as transparent as possible in the procedure towards GAC and its
expert panel; we openly disclosed business figures and data. We expect that all
relevant information in the application documents and the assessment report will be
blackened prior to publication.

If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact us.

Yours sincerely

Prof. Dr. Eberhard Menzel
Chair of the Board

Doris Herrmann
Managing Director for Strategy, Process and International

Dr. Verena Kloeters
Managing Director

Appendices

Summary of activities “reporting back”
Excerpt protocol of GAC for the Round Table of 03.05.2013
Excerpts of email correspondence AQAS/GAC/HRK relating to the database

Editorial comments
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EQAR | Oudergemselaan/Av. d’Auderghem 36 | BE-1040 Brussels
Andreas Musil

- via email -

Brussels, 25 April 2017

Application by AQAS for renewal of registration on EQAR

Dear Mr Musil,

AQAS has made an application for renewal of registration on the
European Quality Assurance Register for Higher Education (EQAR].

We are contacting you in your capacity as chair of the panel that prepared

EQAR Founding Members:

esl

Qe

E-NQA EURASHE

eqarw/

European Quality Assurance
Register for Higher Education
(EQAR) aisbl

Avenue d'Auderghem/
Oudergemselaan 36
1040 Brussels - Belgium

Phone: +32 2 234 39 12
Fax: +32 2 230 33 47

info(deqar.eu
www.eqar.eu

VAT BE 0897.690.557



We be would grateful if it was possible for you to respond by 9 May 2017,
and we would appreciate if you get in contact with us should that not be
feasible.

Please note that EQAR will publish this request and your response
together with the final decision on AQAS' application. We, however, kindly
ask you to keep information related to the application confidential until
the final decision has been published.

We appreciate your assistance and | shall be at your disposal if you have
any questions in relation to this request.

Kind regards,

Colin Tlck
(Director)

Cc: German Accreditation Council (coordinator & secretary)
AQAS

See at http://www.agas.eu/downloads/Criteria%20for%20Programme%20Accre
ditation.pdf and http://www.agas.eu/downloads/Criteria Instit Accreditation AQ

AS.pdf
i See annexes VI.02 and VI.07
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Universitét Potsdam - August-Bebel-Str. 89, 14482 Potsdam I:EHRSTUHL FUR
OFFENTLICHES RECHT,
Colin Tiick INSBESONDERE VERWALTUNGS-
Piisaing UND STEUERRECHT.
EQAR Prof. Dr. Andreas Musil
Oudergemselaan/Av. d’ Auderghem 36 _
BE-1040 Brussels Sekretariat: Ines Thof§
Telefon: (0331) 977-3233
Telefax: (0331)977-3700
E-Mail: musil@uni-potsdam.de
Datum: 08.05.2017
Dear Mr Tiick,

Thank you for your enquiry and for the opportunity to clarify the issues addressed in your letter.

The review panel has discussed the publication issue extensively with the agency. AQAS and the
panel fully agreed that the criteria should be published immediately which has happened until now as
you noticed.

In addition to the criteria in the sense of ESG 2.5, AQAS provides additional material, called
“indicators”, to help HEIs to prepare the accreditation processes. AQAS does not publish these
indicators but gives it to HEIs when an agreement with the agency is imminent or has been signed.
The reason is that AQAS has experienced severe copyright infringements in the past. Material
provided by AQAS has been used in various cases by other organizations or has even been published
without any essential adjustments and permission. In order to secure the copyrights, to maintain a fair
competition and to avoid plagiarism and theft, AQAS publishes only the criteria on its website.

The review panel is strongly convinced that ESG 2.5 is about the criteria, not about all other related
documents.

Furthermore, the review panel discussed this issue in the course of different sessions with the
representatives of various international institutions where AQAS has conducted accreditation
processes. The panel was convinced that AQAS works transparent on the international level and
provides the HEIs with the full range of documentation, as it is contained in the annexes of the
agency’s self-evaluation report.

As described, the review panel evaluated this aspect but it unfortunately has not been explicitly
incorporated in the report. I apologize for the inconvenience and hope that my response gives a
plausible explanation to the addressed questions.

Kind regards, _
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